PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR. 27
18 Sept enmber 1997

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L
Subst antive session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 27t h MEETI NG
Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 15 July 1997, at 10 a.m

President: M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)

CONTENTS

REG ONAL COOPERATI ON

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunent to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Geneva.

GE. 97- 63144 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m
REGQ ONAL COOPERATI ON (E/1997/5, 40 and Add. 1, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45 and 51)
M. ROSENTHAL (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Commi ssion for

Latin Anerica and the Caribbean (ECLAC)), speaking as noderator, invited the
panellists briefly to outline the econom c and social situation in their
respective regions, the programe of work of their commi ssions and the reform
measures they had taken following the resolution adopted by the Council at its

previ ous session.

M . BERTHELOT (Executive Secretary, Econom c Conmi ssion for
Europe (ECE)) focused in his statenent on two questions which had been raised
at the World Economi ¢ Forum which had nmet in Sal zburg during the previous
week and had been attended by a dozen heads of State and Government from
Eur opean countries, and the answers given thereto. The first question had
been one of ascertaining whether the countries in transition were adopting the
Angl o- Saxon or the Rhenish nodel. The Prine Mnister of Estonia had replied
that his country was endeavouring to introduce a systemin line with its
needs. The speaker considered that that reply summed up two | essons which the
ECE had drawn fromthe experience of the past six years: firstly, there was
no one sinple recipe by which the smoboth running of a market econony coul d be
guar anteed; and secondly, that the market by itself did not provide the
i npetus necessary for required restructuring and investnments or guarantee a
pattern of incone distribution which would ensure social cohesion. Those
concl usions were confirmed by trends in European econom es.

Grom h was expected to continue in the countries of Central Europe, and
the trend reversal the first signs of which had appeared during the previous
year in a nunber of CI'S countries was expected to becone consolidated. The
fact that gromh was being |l ed by donmestic denmand and investnent was an
encouragi ng sign and indicative of confidence on the part of investors.

There were, however, two disquieting clouds on the horizon. Firstly, the
deteriorating current-account situation in nost of the countries concerned was
liable to cause concern in financial markets. Macroeconom ¢ nmeasures had been
taken; but exports were still being hanpered by delays in restructuring and
institutional inertia. Refornms of the banking system and financia
institutions needed to be undertaken as a matter of priority if financia
capital was to be attracted. Secondly, in the East as in the Wst, the

nunbers of jobs available (and frequently their quality as well) were



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 3

i nadequat e, and social protection schenes were either too expensive or
ill-adapted to circunstances. That was a problemto which the entire region
woul d have to face up

The second question was whet her the decisions of the Madrid Summt woul d
i ncrease security in Europe. The participants in the Sal zburg Forum
endeavoured to situate those decisions both in tine - as marking the begi nning
of a process - and in space in the context of the treaties, mechani snms and
institutions helping to prevent the fault-lines between the different elenents
in the region from deepeni ng.

As a neeting place for all the countries in the region, ECE had a
particularly inportant role to play in the field of integration, and the
reform process it had undertaken would enable it better to play its part in
that field. The principal features of that process were a refocusing of
activities in fields in which ECE had particul ar strengths, a greater concern
with the countries in transition and the Mediterranean countries, support
for subregional arrangenents and initiatives and decentralization of
deci si on-maki ng. The reform of ECE was being undertaken in the context of the
restructuring plan drawn up by the Secretary-General. |In the inplenentation
of that plan the Econom ¢ and Soci al Council should ensure satisfactory
coordi nati on between the regional conm ssions and all the intergovernmenta
organi zations - whether within the UN famly or not - which were active in the
different regions so as to ensure that those bodi es would make full use of the
expertise of the regional conm ssions.

M. AMOAKO ( Executive Secretary, Econom c¢c Conmi ssion for
Africa (ECA)) expressed satisfaction at the econom c progress achieved in the
African region. In 1996 the gromh rate had reached approximately 5 per cent,
as against 3.4 per cent in 1995 and 0.9 per cent in 1994; 31 countries had
achi eved growh in GDP per head; a nunber of countries had reduced their
fiscal and current-account deficits; and progress had been nmade with nonetary
stabilization and the control of inflation. The resunption of growth was
i nprovi ng the chances of inproving the quality of devel opnent in Africa.
However, progress was unstable, and sonme subregions were | aggi ng behind.
Sub- Saharan Africa accounted for 10 per cent of the world's popul ation, but
produced only 1 per cent of world-w de CDP

The econom c situation was substantially influenced by politica

considerations. African countries could be divided into three categories:



E/ 1997/ SR 27
page 4

countries still in conflict; countries enmerging fromconflict; and the others.
Through its preventive diplomatic work, relief assistance and reconstruction
and devel opnent activities the United Nations systemcould help countries in
these different categories, taking into account the particul ar needs of each

The reforms initiated by ECA during the last two years were intended
precisely to enable it to contribute effectively to the process of
reconstruction, recovery and devel opnent in Africa. |In particular, ECA had
drawn up a new programe containing five subprogrames addressing priority
fields. It had restructured its secretariat and outposted 25 per cent of its
staff to the five subregional devel opnent centres. |t had taken various steps
to restrict the nunber of its publications and to enhance the effectiveness of
its meetings. It had recruited new, conpetent and experi enced nanagers, both
men and wonen, to assist the Executive Secretary in his task. Finally, it had
rationalized its intergovernnental machinery by abolishing a nunber of
m ni sterial meetings and by setting up a nunber of expert commttees to give
advice to policy makers.

To ensure that those reforns would give concrete results for menber
States, the ECA woul d endeavour to devel op cooperation with the other
institutions in the system and in particular the Bretton Wods institutions.
It would henceforth put to good use the expertise of African experts - in
particul ar the findings of the regional research centres - and play a | eading
role in the fornulation of pertinent viewpoints on Africa's devel opnent,
particularly in the presentation of new approaches. It was strengthening its
resource capacity to dissem nate research findings on best practices and to
facilitate exchanges of information anpbng policy nakers, and was seeking to
beconme a centre for exchanges of information on devel opnent in Africa.
Finally, it was stepping up its activities directed at strengthening the
capacities of nmenber States by nmeans of sem nars and wor kshops.

The United Nations Systemw de Special Initiative on Africa provided an
i mportant nechani sm for cooperation and coordination in support of Africa's
devel opnent; it would permt the devel opnent of concrete progranmes in areas
such as health, education, information technology, food security and
governance and woul d pronote synergy anong the institutions and harnoni zation
of activities. ECA as a co-chair of the ACC Steering Conmittee, would

continue to play a key role in the inplenentation of the Initiative.



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 5

M. MOOY (Executive Secretary, Econom c and Social Conmmi ssion for

Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP)) stated that, although the dynam sm of the Asia
and Pacific region, which was due to a considerable degree to a better
integration in the world econony, could no longer be called into question, a
| arge nunber of countries and territories were still marginalized. Sone
two thirds of the poorest nmenbers of humankind lived in the region. Even in
the countries with the highest growmh rates, a significant proportion of the
popul ation was living in poverty. The reduction in the nunmbers of poor
people, and in the proportion of poor people in the total popul ation, seened
to have sl owed down, and disparities in inconme between rural and urban areas
still existed. Clearly much greater efforts needed to be made to inprove
enpl oynment anong the rural poor. In addition, inadequacies in infrastructure
and transport and conmunication services were clearly factors hanpering
econom ¢ expansion. In view of the difficulties being experienced by the
public sector, the huge investnents required to renedy those shortcom ngs
woul d have to come fromthe private sector

The fiftieth anniversary of ESCAP had provided nmenber States with an
opportunity to reaffirmthe essential role which the Conm ssion, draw ng
strength fromits neutrality and universality, could and must play in
pronoti ng subregi onal cooperation and strengthening the spirit of
inter-country cooperation. Menber States had insisted on the need to devise
programes responding nore directly to the different needs of countries at the
various stages in their developnent. The fact that the | evels of devel opnent
reached by the countries of the region differed widely offered them an
opportunity of sharing their experiences in that field. The speaker nentioned
in this connection the nenorandum of understandi ng which ESCAP had recently
concluded with the Government of Singapore under which the latter woul d open
its training facilities to Pacific Island nationals and hoped that other
simlar agreenents woul d be concl uded.

The priority areas of work identified for ESCAP at its fiftieth session
i ncluded the provision of policy guidance to nmenber States in nmeeting the
chal I enges of gl obalization, the eradication of poverty, the protection of the
envi ronnent, human resources devel opnent and the pronmpti on of regiona
cooperation in trade, investnent, technology transfer and infrastructure

devel opnent .



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 6

As part of its reform process, which it |ooked on as an ongoi ng process
formng an elenent in the wider reformof the United Nations system requiring
regul ar eval uati on, ESCAP had decided to review its conference structure with
a viewto inproving delivery of its work programre while securing greater
participation by its nenbers and associate nmenbers in its activities. It
decided to retain its thematic programr ng approach, which all in all offered
nmor e advant ages than di sadvant ages and whi ch m ght even prove of increasing
rel evance in the light of the growing conplexity of devel opment probl ens.
ESCAP considered that it was well equipped to assist its nenber States, not
only through its activities of a normative and anal ytical nature but also
through its operational role as a catalyst in pronoting sharing of experience
and in providing technical assistance in fields such as training and
capaci ty-buil di ng.

ESCAP consi dered that every effort must be nmade to avoid duplication and
woul d continue to |l ook closely into fields which did not fall within the
speci fic purview of any international organization, such as transport and
energy. In other fields it could play a conplenentary role. One exanple was
the field of trade, where it had taken the initiative of exam ning with Asian
countries which were not nenbers of WIO the benefits they might gain from
menber shi p.

ESCAP appreci ated the role of the Regional Inter-Agency Commttee for
Asia and the Pacific in regional coordination and was endeavouring to devel op
a spirit of partnership with the different representatives of civil society.
In 50 years the world in general, and the Asia and Pacific region in
particul ar, had greatly changed. At the outset ESCAP had had 10 nenbers; it
now had 60, including associate nenbers. Fully aware of the need to adapt to
changi ng circunstances, it would continue to endeavour to respond to the needs
of its nenbers and to work actively for the econonic and social devel opment of
t he region.

M. EL-BEBLAW (Executive Secretary, Econonic and Soci al

Commi ssion for Western Asia (ESCWA)) was pleased to be able to report that the
Western Asian region as a whole had in 1996 achieved a significant inprovenent
in terms of its macroeconom c indicators, primarily owing to the increase in

oil prices and the success of the economic reforms. However, the continuation



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 7

of econom ¢ sanctions against Irag and the uncertainties surroundi ng the peace
process in the Mddle East had contributed to the worsening of the probl em of
unenpl oyment in the nenber States of ESCWA

ESCWA had participated actively in the process of reform of the
United Nations. The reforns it had itself undertaken since 1993 in cl ose
consultation with its nenber States and all parties concerned had al ready
yi el ded concrete results. The restructuring of the Comm ssion had been
conpleted, its mediumterm plan for the period 1992-1997 had been revised, and
the work programes for 1994-1995 and 1996- 1997 had been refornul ated. The
Commi ssion had al so taken neasures in the organi zati onal and admi nistrative
fields and also to reinforce regional inter-agency coordination and establish
new nmechani sms for cooperation and consultation with nmenber States and
regi onal organi zations.

The Meeting of Emi nent Persons organized in Decenmber 1996 to discuss the
role and future of ESCWA had evaluated the refornms effected and approved the
new priorities as defined. At its nineteenth session, ESCWA had adopted a
resolution confirm ng the appropriateness of those priorities. Menber States
had approved the reforns and called for a strengthening of the Conm ssion's
role in the coordination of their econonm c and social policies.

During 1996, ESCWA had focused on areas of priority for the region, and
in particular the water issue, regional transport and communi cati ons networks,
the integration of the region into the world trade system and the effects of
the M ddl e East peace process on the econom ¢ and social situation in nenber
States. It had al so been actively involved in the pronotion of sustainable
devel opnent, the eradication of poverty, the harnoni zati on of standards and
| egi sl ative instrunents and the devel opnent of a regional approach to follow
up on international conferences. It had systematically adopted an
intersectoral and multidisciplinary approach to the planning and
i mpl enmentation of its work programe.

The strengthening of regional cooperation had been given concrete form
t hrough the neetings of the Conm ssion's intergovernmental bodies. ESCWA had
continued to coordinate its activities with those of regional and
i nternational organizations and other United Nations bodies. [Its new
Regi onal | nter-Agency Coordination G oup had net several times, primarily to
di scuss the establishment of a programe of joint action to give effect to

t he recommendati ons of gl obal conferences. As regards its role in the



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 8

M ddl e East, ESCWA had participated in the Mddle East-North African Econom c
Conference, held in Cairo in Novenber 1996, and in the First Mediterranean
Devel opment Forum held in Marrakesh in May 1997

In conclusion, M. El-Beblawi stated that, as the regional arm of the
United Nations in Western Asia, ESCW was determ ned to pronote sustainabl e
devel opnent whi ch woul d be continually strengthened by enhanced cooperation
with menber States and with all the regional bodies concerned, both
governnental and non-governnental. To achieve that goal in a rapidly changing
world, a new vision for the region was required.

M. ROSENTHAL (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Commi ssion for

Latin Anerica and the Caribbean (ECLAC)) said that the work programe of ECLAC

sought to help Governnents to respond to the three principal challenges of
econonmi ¢ devel opnent in the region: to increase the gromh rate and achi eve
greater equity; to raise levels of saving and investment; and, lastly, to
pronmote the incorporation of nmenber countries into the international econony
by strengthening the economic integration of Latin Anerica and the Cari bbean
One of the principal activities carried out by ECLAC since July 1996 had been
the organization in April 1997 in Sdo Paulo (Brazil) of the first regiona
conference held in the developing world to follow up on the Copenhagen Worl d
Summit for Social Devel opment, on the conclusion of which menmber States had
adopted the “Consensus of S&o Paul 0”.

The question of the reform of the regional conm ssions, which had
formed the subject of General Assenbly resolution 50/227 and Counci
resolution 1996/41, had already been exanmi ned by ECLAC before the adoption of
those two resolutions. The Comm ssion had sel ected six objectives: to
reaffirmthe institutional identity of ECLAC as a centre of excellence charged
with collaborating with nmenber States; to define priorities in the work
programme with greater rigor; to sinplify its organizational structure; to
achi eve greater efficiency in nanagenent; to take measures for institutiona
devel opnent; and, finally, to strengthen its relationships with other regiona
and multilateral organizations. A special working group open to all menber
countries had been instructed to assist the Secretariat in defining priorities
for its work programme and to recommend strategic orientations. The draft
budget for the progranmes of the 1998/ 1999 bi ennium currently before the
Fifth Commttee, reflected all the reforns underway. 1In conclusion, he stated

that the Secretary-Ceneral was expected to announce a pilot project covering



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 9

the whole of the United Nations system and providing for transition from
ex ante verification of expenditure to ex post verification of results. ECLAC
wel comed this technique, which was already in w despread application in both
public adm ni strations and the business world. Concluding his statement,
M. Rosenthal said that ECLAC, which had al ready made great strides towards
the overall ains of restructuring and revitalizing the United Nations system
would maintain its efforts during the com ng nonths.

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to join in an informal

di scussion with the Executive Secretaries of the Regional Conm ssions.
M. MM DLAM N (Cbserver, Swaziland) welconed the reforns

undertaken to revitalize the ECA, to introduce networking into the system and
to devel op closer cooperation with African subregi onal and regiona

organi zations. Those neasures should nmake it possible to establish a commn
ref erence basis on econonic devel opment in Africa and pronote pursuit of the
objectives of the United Nations Systemw de Special Initiative on Africa. He
suggested that the training of governnent officials should be organized at the
subregi onal level. He asked whether ECA was contenpl ati ng the organi zati on of
wor kshops to prepare nenber States for the trade negotiations within WO and
how | ong the devel opi ng countries would subsequently have to wait to receive a
return on their efforts.

Ms. KIZILDELI (Turkey) wel coned the new nanagenent system which

the reforms were introducing within the United Nations system She asked how
i nteracti on between the funds, programmes and specialized agenci es concer ned
wi th devel opnment, on the one hand, and the regi onal economi c conm ssions on
the other, could be inproved; how overlapping in follow up on major
i nternational conferences could be avoided; and how rel ati ons between the
di fferent comm ssions could be inproved so that each would benefit fromthe
experi ence and specialized know edge of the others.

M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) asked how ESCAP coul d renedy the huge
di sparities between growh rates in the different countries of the region and
help to elimnate overl apping between United Nations bodies, national or
regi onal organi zations and the regional conm ssions thenmselves. He asked how
ESCAP woul d participate within the common framework of devel opment aid which
the Secretary-General had proposed to establish in each country.

M. MCHUMO (Cbserver for the United Republic of Tanzani a) speaking

to the Executive Secretary of ECA, expressed surprise that the report of the



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 10

Secretary-Ceneral entitled “Regional Cooperation in the Econom c, Social and
Rel ated Fiel ds” (E/ 1997/40) contained no reference to the New United Nations
Agenda for Devel opnment of Africa during the 1990s. At its previous
substanti ve session the Council had enphasized that the ECA should help to
render that programme operational. He asked why the Conm ssion had decided
not to give effect to the decisions of the General Assenbly and the Econom c
and Social Council on the subject. He also asked what anmounts had al ready
been nobilized out of the comitments of approximately US$ 25 billion made at
the tine of the launching of the United Nations Special Initiative for Africa.

On a nore general plane, he asked whether the regional conm ssions had
undertaken studies to facilitate the exam nation of their mandate by the
Counci | .

M . BAHAMONDES (Canada) asked the Executive Secretary of ECLAC how

the strengthening of the |links between regi onal bodies and regiona

conmi ssions would be effected. |In nore general terms, were other regiona
commi ssions contenpl ati ng devel opnents of the same type? The thematic
approach was an inportant coordination tool which had been nentioned by the
Executive Secretary of ESCAP, and the Canadi an del egation would Iike
additional information on the subject. Finally, he asked the Executive
Secretary of ECA to describe the current position regardi ng cooperation and
coordi nati on between institutions in the United Nations systemregarding their
concrete activities to assist Africa. A “grey area” existed between normative
and operational activities. He asked whether a regional strategy note would
constitute a useful nechanismin this regard.

M. ACEMAH (Uganda) asked the Executive Secretary of ECA a nunber
of questions. Had the Conm ssion drawn up strategies to face up to the
gravity of the social situation in Africa? Should it not consider changing
its name to becone the Economic and Social Conmi ssion for Africa? Had it
adopted strategies for the eradication of poverty? Wat role did it propose
to play in support of the establishnent of an African econom c comunity,
deci ded on by the Organization of African Unity (OAU) at the Harare sunmt
nmeeting?

M. SI MKHADA (Observer for Nepal) asked how the different regiona

conmmi ssions saw their role in the sphere of vertical and horizonta
coordi nati on and cooperation. He went on to ask the Executive Secretary of

ESCAP what role that body could play in the sharing of experience in the field



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 11

of devel opnent whi ch he had nentioned, and what programes the Comm ssion was
offering to the | east devel oped and | andl ocked countries in the region
particularly in the area of capacity-building.
M. AMOAKO (Executive Secretary, Economic Conmi ssion for Africa

(ECA)) fully recognized the inportance of capacity-building and training for
governnment officials at the subregional level. The ECA had greatly expanded
its activities in that field (organization of workshops and sem nars) and
woul d expand them further during the next biennium it had decentralized
25 per cent of its staff to secure closer contact with Governnments at the
subregional level. It was fully aware of the inportance of the trade
negoti ati ons organi zed within the framework of WIO and was endeavouring to
strengthen the negotiating capacities of African Governments in that field.
The objectives of the New United Nations Agenda for the Devel opment of Africa
differed little fromthose of ECA, this was particularly the case with regard
to nmobilization of resources, diversification and regional integration. It
was therefore incorrect to say that ECA was playing no part in the
i mpl enentati on of that progranme. Moreover, ECA was playing a major role with
regard to the Special Initiative for Africa, an excellent field for
cooperation between the Conmi ssion and other United Nations bodies, and which
was primarily directed towards achieving i nprovenents in the social sector

The distinction between normative and operational activities was
somewhat artificial. ECA had to have both operational activities -
organi zati on of workshops, seminars and training in conjunction with other
United Nations bodies - and normative activities - dissenination of good
practice, advocacy, networking, etc. In conclusion, he stated that the ECA
was contributing to the establishnment of an African econom ¢ community by
gi ving support to institutions at the subregional |evel

M. BERTHELOT (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Conmmi ssion for Europe

(ECE)) replied to the questions on the relations between the regiona

commi ssions and ot her regional bodies. The latter, in his view, could be
divided into two categories. Those in the first category had well-established
secretariats, and in its relations with bodies in that category a regiona
commi ssion shoul d seek a satisfactory division of tasks and the harnoni zati on
of programm ng. The ECE enjoyed relations of that kind with CECD and the
European Union in the statistical field; the programes of the three bodies

were different, but they were established jointly within the framework of the



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 12

Conference of European Statisticians. Simlarly, cooperation had been
devel oped with the Council of Europe in the environnent sphere; the Counci
was concerned with the protection of wildlife and the ECE with natura

di sasters. Thus the problem was one of ensuring that the activities
undertaken in sectors in which several regional bodies had responsibilities
were nutually conpl ementary.

Regi onal bodi es without |arge secretariats or with primarily politica
ai ms shoul d make use of the technical work done by the ECE. That was the
principle underlying cooperation between ECE and the Organi zation for Security
and Cooperation in Europe, which was al so having to integrate the econonc
dimension within its activities. The ECE was helping in that field through
joint sem nars, workshops, etc. Cooperation of that type between the
two bodi es would be formalized by an exchange of letters in the near future.

The primary concern of ECE in its relations with subregi onal groups was
one of passing on know edge of what it was doing, thus giving an indirect
i mpetus to inplenmentation of instruments it had itself devel oped.

The sane coul d be said of cooperation with bodies with gl obal nandates.
There was no difficulty in establishing relations with organizations
possessing | arge secretariats on subjects such as the publication of ngjor
econom ¢ studies. The anal yses concerning the eastern European countries
contained in the Wrld Econom c and Soci al Survey, published in New York, were
taken fromthe European Econom c Survey prepared by the ECE in Geneva. A
further exanple of cooperation, this tine with UNCTAD and the Internationa
Trade Centre (I TC), was the precise definition by the ECE of the role of each
of the three institutions with regard to trade facilitation

The Turki sh del egation had inquired whether the work of one regiona
commi ssi on was di ssem nated anong the others. The question was of inportance
for the devel opnment of cooperation anong conm ssions. As a nmatter of
principle, there was no requirenment of simlarity between regiona
conmi ssions, since the needs differed fromregion to region. ECE had
establ i shed a nunber of standards and fornul ated a | arge nunber of
conventions. Cbviously, sonme of themwere only of concern to Europe, but
others might interest other regions. For instance, the first country to
ratify the Container Pool Convention was Angola. Simlarly, nearly al

countries had acceded to the TIR Convention, even though that convention had



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 13

initially been designed to regulate road transport in Europe. O her
conventions m ght serve as benchmarks: one current exanple was that of the
Convention on Long-range Trans-boundary Air Pollution.

On the question of the presuned inconpatibility between operationa
activities and anal ytical work, the speaker associated hinself unreservedly
with the remarks of the Executive Secretary of ECA

M. ROSENTHAL (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Commi ssion for

Latin Anerica and the Cari bbean (ECLAC)) disagreed with the suggestion that
t he gl obal vocation of the United Nations would prevent it from properly
di scharging its role at the regional or subregional |evel. ECLAC was
cooperating actively with the Organization of Anerican States (OAS) and with
the Inter-American Devel opnent Bank (IDB) in the pronotion of economc
integration in the region it covered and the establishnment of a free trade
Area in that region. For purposes of the division of |abour between the
three institutions, the particular strength of the Comm ssion lay precisely in
the fact that the United Nations system to which it bel onged, had a gl oba
mandate. In fact, the United Nations was particularly well placed to work
wi th governnments to advance the cause of regionalization. Wen governnents
were asked whet her the work of the Conm ssions should continue to be
orientated in that direction, the response was invariably affirmative.

M. MOOY (Executive Secretary, Econom c and Social Commi ssion for
Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP)) fully recogni zed the disparities in |evels of
devel opnent in the region covered by ESCAP. On that account the Conm ssion
classified its nmenbers in three groups: the |east devel oped and the
| andl ocked countries; the devel oping Pacific Island countries; and the
countries in transition. Naturally, the Committee was devising different
forms of action to assist each of those groups. 1In addition, the Conm ssion
was increasingly seeking to benefit fromthe experience acquired by those of
its menbers which had energed froma state of underdevel opnent, asking themto
serve as nmodels for countries wishing to follow simlar paths. For instance,
a training course in tourism managenent woul d take place in Septenber 1997 in
Si ngapore. ESCAP al so intended in the near future to take advantage of the
| evel of developnment in Malaysia, and | ater those achieved in Thailand and
Indonesia. In that sense repetition of certain activities could give fruitful

results, and pejorative references to overl appi ng were undeserved.



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 14

On the question of overlapping, the speaker pointed out that certain
United Nations institutions were of a sectoral character, whereas a regiona
conmi ssion was by definition nmultisectoral; consequently overlapping was in
certain respect inevitable. |In any case, to avoid unnecessary overl appi ng as
far as possi ble, ESCAP had in 1994 established the Regional Inter-Agency
Conmittee for Asia and the Pacific, which had 13 subcomittees, each chaired
by a different agency. ESCAP provided secretariat services for the Commttee
and its subcommttees, all of which net frequently to exchange information, to
identify cases of overlapping to be discontinued and to select joint projects.

In order to inplenent the thematic approach it had adopted, ESCAP began
ensuring the necessary coordination within the Conm ssion itself as soon as
programm ng had been forrmulated in intersectoral terms. Not until the
programm ng had been finally adopted did it set about the task of ensuring
i nter-agency coordination at the regional level. It also endeavoured to
ensure coordination at national |evel through contacts with the UNDP resident
representatives.

Doubts had been expressed in certain circles concerning the possible
i nconpatibility between anal ytical research and operational activities in the
field. Like his colleagues, the speaker considered that the two types of
activity nust rather be considered as nutually conplenentary and parall el

He failed to see what body might act as negotiating partner vis-a-vis
the United Nations systemin the course of the preparation of a nationa
strategy note. In contrast, the preparation of a franework for regi ona
cooperation by UNDP was in line with a concept which was wel | - known and had
al ready been appli ed.

M. EL-BEBLAW (Executive Secretary, Econonic and Soci al
Commi ssion for Western Asia (ESCWA)) observed that certain nenbers of the

Council feared that it was inpossible to give effect to major world
conferences without giving rise to overlapping. However, ESCWA, as a matter
of principle, contacted all the other institutions active in the region and
drew up a programre of follow up activities which should in theory prevent al
over | apping. Such efforts to pronote cooperation stood to reason, as
currently all devel opment institutions, including the regional conmm ssions,
faced with continually shrinking resources, were endeavouring to pool what

t hey had.



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 15

However, as the Executive Secretary of ESCAP had pointed out, there was
sonetinmes justification for overlapping. That was the case, for instance,
with the structural adjustment progranmes, which the countries concerned
initially tended to reject. Wen the regional commi ssion was consulted

a posteriori and made a favourabl e recommendati on, those progranmes were

better accepted.

Li ke his coll eagues, M. El-Beblaw considered that there was no
conflict between anal ytical work and operational activities - rather the
opposite. Speaking on the subject of the possibility of a regional strategy
note, he warned that it would be difficult to secure a consensus ampong a | arge
nunber of countries.

M. YOUSSEF (Observer for Egypt) inquired how systematic dial ogue
coul d be pronoted between the regional comr ssions and the bodies with
headquarters in Geneva (1LO, WHO, UNCTAD, etc.) whose work had a direct inpact
on the activities of the commi ssions. He asked how ECA envi saged the
prospects of cooperation with OAU, the African Devel opnent Bank, the Arab
League and various Arab financing agenci es and what neasures were contenpl at ed
to coordinate the work of the regional conm ssions in the field of information
t echnol ogi es.

M. KERBER (United States of America) considered that the
di scussion presently taking place should have taken place earlier in the
session, because it had a direct relationship to the subject selected for the
hi gh-1 evel debate. He asked how the regi onal conm ssions anticipated
strengthening their relations with the United Nations bodies with
responsibilities for operational activities. He noted that the budgets for
1998- 1999 of all the regi onal comm ssions showed increases (45 per cent in the
case of ESCWA) and hoped that those increases related to actual projects and
not to administrative expenditure. He was in some doubt regarding the neans
of inproving cooperation between the regional comm ssions and the Economni c and
Social Council in such a way that the latter should take greater account of
the activities of the conmi ssions. Referring to the innovative neasures
pl anned by ECLAC, particularly within the framework of the pilot nanagenent
pl an, he asked whether the other comm ssions were contenpl ati ng adopti on of

simlar neasures to inprove the admnistration of their programmes and to



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 16

decentralize deci sion-making. Finally, he asked what the contribution of the
regi onal comm ssions would be to the high-level neeting on the | east-devel oped
countries which was to be held in October under the auspices of WO

M. AARDAL (Observer for Norway) expressed satisfaction at the
efforts made by ECA to integrate the conplex of gender-specific problens into
its activities and to increase the nunber of wonen in its executive bodies.

He asked for figures showing the results of those efforts within ECA and the
ot her commi ssions. He asked what had become of the Leadership Fund for
African Wonen referred to in paragraph 182 of docunment E/ 1997/40. ECA had
just organized an inportant forum on the managenent of public affairs in

Addi s Ababa. It was to be hoped that the report on the proceedi ngs of that
meeting woul d be rapidly nade avail able and distributed to all the partners of
the Commi ssion. Norway reaffirnmed its intention to strengthen its cooperation
with the Comm ssion for purposes of inplenentation of the United Nations
Systemwi de Special Initiative on Africa.

M. KONDO (Japan) stated that an Asia-Africa Forum had recently
been held in Thailand as part of the programme of South-South cooperation
During that forumthe countries and the international organizations
represented decided to focus their cooperation on the following priority
sectors: capacity building, the sustainable inmprovenent of agricultura
productivity and the devel opnent of the private sector. He asked how t hose
priorities would be reflected in the activities of ESCAP.

M. JORGENSEN (WHO) referred to the proposal that the Counci

shoul d take responsibility for coordi nati on between the regi onal comm ssions

and all other intergovernmental bodies, whether or not they forned part of the
United Nations system He asked what inter-agency nmechani sms were antici pated
at Council level to ensure coordination with bodies outside the United Nations
system He al so asked whether the bodies in question had comruni cated their
reactions to that proposal, and whether the existing coordination structures
woul d not suffice without the involvenent of the cunbersonme machinery of the
Counci | .

M. MAQUEIRA (Chile) considered that, within the framework of the

reform of the regional conm ssions, the pilot plan nmentioned by the
Executive Secretary of ECLAC could be a very useful instrument for inproving
the functioning of the conmi ssions. In his view ECLAC should be given broad

autonony in the inplementation of the reforms and strengthen its consultations



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 17

with States Menbers as that inplenentation proceeded. He asked whether it
woul d not be desirable, to facilitate coordinated and integrated follow up on
maj or United Nations conferences, to establish at regional |evel special teans
nodel | ed on those created at the systemw de |evel

M. CLARI SME (Observer for Haiti) observed that cooperation had

devel oped between ECLAC and certain nultilateral and regional organizations,
such as the I MF and, above all, the IDB, to create a free trade area in the
region. He asked for information on the extent of cooperation between ECLAC
and the Caribbean Common Market (CARI COVM) and the Southern Cone Common Mar ket
( MERCOSUR) .

Ms. ASHI PALA- MUSAVYI (Observer for Nami bia) asked what measures

had been taken, within the framework of the follow up on the mjor
United Nations conferences, to strengthen the African Centre for Wnen. She
asked for information on the relations between the headquarters of ECA and the
subregi onal centres. During the high-level debate a nunber of speakers had
enphasi zed the role of the private sector as the | oconotive of growth. That
sector was still at an enmbryonic stage in Africa. She asked whet her
cooperation for the devel opnent of the private sector existed between ECA and
the other regional conm ssions.

M . CABACTULAN (Philippines) considered that the principle of a

regi onal strategy note should be envisaged with caution. He asked how the
regi onal comm ssions could use the thematic groups in such a way as to nake
them an effective instrument for the coordinated and integrated foll ow up of
maj or United Nations conferences, particularly those on intersectora
problems. He al so asked what functions should be specifically delegated to
them within the franework of the overall reformof the regi onal comm ssions,
to enabl e them better to respond to the needs of menber States. Finally, he
asked whet her the regi onal commi ssions should not be associated with the work
of the subconmttees of the ACC, such as the Subcommittee on Water Resources
Devel opnent .

M. SABA A (Brazil) considered that, in view of the highly diverse
nature of the regional commi ssions, the reforms should be inplenented in a
decentralized fashion. |In the circunstances he wondered if one could
reasonably contenplate assigning to the Council the task of supervising the

regi onal conm ssions.



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 18

M . HI DAYAT (Observer for Indonesia) asked how ESCAP coul d
strengthen its cooperation with the regional groups and how popul ati on
guestions could be integrated within the conplex of activities being conducted
by the Conm ssion

M. AMOAKO (Executive Secretary, Econonic Conm ssion for Africa),
inreply to the questions relating to the Special Initiative for Africa,
stated that he was unable for the time being to indicate how much of the
expected US$ 25 billion had actually been mobilized. It had to be remenbered
that the Initiative had been | aunched only a year earlier and that it was
designed to cover a 15-year period. |Inplenmentation would take place at the
nati onal level on the basis of specific plans of action matching nationa
priorities, on the basis of which the volune of resources necessary could be
determ ned. The Initiative would be the operational instrument of the
United Nati ons New Agenda for Africa' s Devel opnent during the 1990s. It could
play an inportant role as a catalyst for the nobilization of additiona
resources; one exanple of that effect could be seen in the recent forumon the
managenment of public affairs, at the end of which a neeting of donors took
pl ace.

Mechani sms were already in place for systematic dialogue with the
Geneva- based organi zations. Under the Special Initiative those bodies
participated in all the technical neetings of the Steering Comrittee of ACC in
Addi s Ababa. A menorandum of agreenent on cooperation on trade-rel ated
guestions and negotiations with WO had been signed wi th UNCTAD.

ECA had established a joint secretariat with the African Devel opnment
Bank (which was al so undergoing reform for the conduct of joint studies.

Wth QAU the objective was to pronpte conplenentarity of activities to the
greatest possible extent; one of the principal areas of cooperation would be
the prevention of conflicts and the transition froma war context to an optic
of devel opnent.

In its budget for 1998/ 1999 ECA planned to devote nore resources to the
nore systematic use of information technologies, training in that field,
intranet installation, etc. At the sane time, the Commi ssion was endeavouring
to pronote those techniques at national |evel

ECA had every intention of drawing on the ECLAC pilot plan to inprove
its budgetary and adm nistrative managenent nethods and to that end had sent a
m ssion to ECLAC



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 19

ECA was associated with the preparation of the high-lIevel nmeeting on the
| east-devel oped countries and in that context was participating in joint
studies (in particular with UNCTAD) on questions of vital importance to it.

The primary function of the Leadership Fund for African Wnmen was to
back up the activities of ECA in the field of pronmotion of women through
projects in a nunber of priority sectors (legal aspects, access to credit,
etc.). The African Centre for Wnen was coordinating all the activities of
the Conmi ssion relating to wonen. New managers had been appointed in the
Centre, and its staff had been doubled. As part of the followup on the
Beijing conference a neeting on the integration of gender-specific problens in
the activities of ECA was planned for April 1998. By then the Comm ssion
hoped to have reports describing the current condition of wonen in all African
countries. In the context of followup on the Cairo conference it had been
agreed wi th UNFPA that the next ECA conference of ministers would be primarily
devoted to popul ati on questions.

The subj ect of devel opnent of the private sector had been raised during
the nost recent conference of finance ministers. The Conmi ssion itself had
given attention to questions of trade and investment pronotion and had
organi zed a nunber of neetings and events designed in particular to pronote
the creation in Africa of capital markets, stock exchanges, etc. Cooperation
with the Asian region had begun within the framework of a progranme sponsored
by the Governnent of Japan. |In particular, the establishment of an
Africa-Asia foundation to pronote exchanges of information and partnerships

for the devel opnent of the private sector was contenpl ated.

M. BERTHELOT (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Commi ssion for Europe
(ECE)) regretted that the United Nations funds and progranmes responsible for
devel opnent -ori ented operational activities did not nake sufficient use of the
capacities and expertise of the regional comr ssions and the organi zations
with a global mandate. The conmi ssions had not been invited to take part in
the establishment of the regional programm ng outlines, and the teams of
regi onal advi sers should be strengthened further

The budget of ECE was shrinking. During the financial year 1996-1997

the Comm ssion had reduced its staff by 8 per cent. He hoped that
decentralization shoul d be taken nuch further than had hitherto been the case.
The representative of Brazil had asked a question concerning the relations

bet ween the Council and the conmi ssions to which there was no sinple answer.



E/ 1997/ SR. 27
page 20

To be able to follow up the Council had to be inforned so as to be in a
position to give guidelines; but it was not its responsibility to establish
programes of work. Those programes were established by governments in the
light of the principles or guidelines which it was the task of the Council to
frame.

M. ROSENTHAL (Executive Secretary, Econom ¢ Commi ssion for

Latin Anerica and the Caribbean (ECLAC)), replying to the Observer for Haiti,
stated that ECLAC was cooperating actively with CAR COM and MERCOSUR t hrough
its offices in Brazil, Buenos Aires and Mntevideo.

The representatives of Brazil, the United States and Chile had raised
i mportant questions, in particular on the rel ations between the comm ssions
and the Council. Rather than give excessively brief replies he preferred to
make a statement on the subject at the next sitting.

M. MOOY (Executive Secretary, Econom c and Social Conmmi ssion for

Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP)), replying to the representative of Japan, stated
that ESCAP had many opportunities to cooperate with the other regiona
conmi ssions and with other institutions active in the region and was maki ng
good use of them For instance, the Wrld Bank and | MF were nenbers of the
regi onal inter-agency committee for Asia and the Pacific. There was al so
active cooperation with subregional groups such as ASEAN

ESCAP proposed to seek the advice of certain other comm ssions, such as
ECLAC, on means of reducing expenditure. ECLAC seened to be able to work just
as effectively even though it had reduced the nunmber of its neetings and
publications. However, notw thstanding the savings to be made, ESCAP woul d
continue to seek nmeans of devel oping cl oser cooperation at both bilateral and
mul tilateral |evels.

M. EL-BEBLAW (Executive Secretary, Econonic and Soci al

Commi ssion for Western Asia (ESCWA)) stated that the budget of ESCWA had been

reduced by 6.4 per cent follow ng staff reductions. The apparent increase was
due to the fact that the Comm ssion was |eaving Amman to return to Beirut

where the cost of living, and consequently the post adjustnent, were higher

The neeting was adjourned at 1.25 p. m




